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)
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)

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW


On May 26, 1999, the Missouri State Committee for Social Workers (the Committee) filed a complaint seeking to discipline the clinical social worker license of Feryle Cooper for having been convicted of mail fraud.  On January 7, 2000, we convened a hearing on the complaint.  Assistant Attorney General Douglas C. Leyshock represented the Committee.  Lee C. McMurray represented Cooper.  Our reporter filed the transcript on January 10, 2000. 

Finding of Fact


Cooper holds clinical social worker License No. SW000813, which is, and was at all relevant times, active.  On March 29, 1996, the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Missouri found Cooper guilty, on her plea of guilty, of mail fraud in violation of 

18 U.S.C. section 1341,
 and imposed a sentence of two years’ probation.  United States v. Cooper, No. 4:95CR267-DJS.  

Conclusions of Law

We have jurisdiction to hear the Committee’s complaint under section 337.630.2. 

The Committee has the burden of proving that Cooper has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.  Missouri Real Estate Comm’n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 

(Mo. App., E.D. 1989).  The Committee cites section 337.630.2(2), which allows discipline if:  

(2) The person has been finally adjudicated and found guilty, or entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, in a criminal prosecution pursuant to the laws of any state or of the United States, for any offense reasonably related to the qualifications, functions or duties of a clinical social worker; for any offense an essential element of which is fraud, dishonesty or an act of violence; or for any offense involving moral turpitude, whether or not sentence is imposed[.]   

(Emphasis added.)  

An element of an offense is one that is always required to be present as an element of that offense.  State ex rel. Atkins v. State Bd. of Accountancy, 351 S.W.2d 483, 485 (Mo. App., K.C.D. 1961).  Fraud is an intentional perversion of truth to induce another, in reliance on it, to part with some valuable thing belonging to him.  State ex rel. Williams v. Purl, 128 S.W. 196, 201 (Mo. 1910).  Dishonesty is a lack of integrity, a disposition to defraud or deceive.  MERRIAM-WEBSTER’S COLLEGIATE DICTIONARY 333 (10th ed. 1993).  18 U.S.C. section 2 provides:

(a) Whoever commits an offense against the United States or aids,
abets, counsels, commands, induces or procures its commission, is
punishable as a principal.


(b) Whoever willfully causes an act to be done which if directly
performed by him or another would be an offense against the United States, is punishable as a principal.

To violate 18 U.S.C. section 1341 requires that a person:

having devised or intending to devise any scheme or artifice to defraud, or for obtaining money or property by means of false or fraudulent pretenses . . . , for the purpose of executing such scheme or artifice or attempting so to do, places in any post office or authorized depository for mail matter, any matter or thing, . . . or receives therefrom, any such matter or thing[.]

To obtain money by false pretenses involves fraud and dishonesty.  We conclude that fraud and dishonesty are essential elements of mail fraud.  Therefore, we conclude that Cooper was finally adjudicated and found guilty of a crime an essential element of which is fraud and dishonesty.  

“Moral turpitude” is: 

an act of baseness, vileness, or depravity in the private and social duties which a man owes to his fellowman or to society in general, contrary to the accepted and customary rule of right and duty between man and man; everything ‘done contrary to justice, honesty, modesty, and good morals.’  

In re Frick, 694 S.W.2d 473, 479 (Mo. banc 1985) (quoting In re Wallace, 19 S.W.2d 625 

(Mo. banc 1929)).  Mail fraud is a crime involving moral turpitude.  Neibling v. Terry,

177 S.W.2d 502, 503 (Mo. banc 1944).  Therefore, we conclude that Cooper was finally adjudicated and found guilty of a crime involving moral turpitude.  


At the hearing, Cooper argued that certain factors should mitigate her discipline.  She asserted that she has never been disciplined before or since and provides a valuable service to her community.  She asserted that she was not guilty of mail fraud and only pled guilty because she believed that she could not get a fair trial.  However, this Commission decides only whether there is cause for discipline.  The Committee will decide the appropriate degree of discipline after we certify our record to it.  Section 621.110, RSMo 1994.  

Summary


Therefore, we conclude that Cooper is subject to discipline under section 337.630.2(2) for having entered a plea of guilty to, been finally adjudicated and found guilty of, a crime an essential element of which is fraud and dishonesty, and one involving moral turpitude.  


SO ORDERED on February 10, 2000.  



_______________________________



WILLARD C. REINE



Commissioner

�Statutory citations are to the 1999 Supplement to the 1994 Revised Statutes of Missouri, except as otherwise noted. 
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